

# CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

# **MIAMI-DADE COUNTY**

**REGULAR BOARD MEETING SEPTEMBER 20, 2018 6:15** P.M.

> Special District Services, Inc. 6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Suite 374 Miami Lakes, FL 33014

> > www.coronadocdd.org 305.777.0761 Telephone 877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 561.630.4923 Facsimile

AGENDA CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

> Islands at Doral Clubhouse Meeting Room 8250 N.W. 112<sup>th</sup> Court Doral, Florida 33178 **REGULAR BOARD MEETING** September 20, 2018 6:15 p.m.

A. Call to Order B. Proof of Publication.....Page 1 C. Establish Quorum D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda F. Approval of Minutes 1. July 19, 2018 Regular Board Meeting.....Page 2 G. Old Business 1. Staff Report as Required H. New Business 1. Discussion Regarding Proposals to Install Soft Gate Security Camera Project I. Administrative & Operational Matters 1. Discussion Regarding Community Security Services Transition to Security Watch Group 2. Consider and Approve Security Services Agreement Between District and Security Watch Group Effective August 30, 2018......Page 6 3. Discussion Regarding General Election 2018 and the District's Election Procedures

- 4. Staff Report: As Required
- J. Board Member and Staff Closing Comments
- K. Adjourn

#### MIAMI DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW

Published Daily except Saturday, Sunday and Legal Holidays Miami, Miami-Dade County, Florida

#### STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared MARIA MESA, who on oath says that he or she is the LEGAL CLERK, Legal Notices of the Miami Daily Business Review f/k/a Miami Review, a daily (except Saturday, Sunday and Legal Holidays) newspaper, published at Miami in Miami-Dade County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a Legal Advertisement of Notice in the matter of

CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT - FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE

in the XXXX Court, was published in said newspaper in the issues of

#### 09/28/2017

Affiant further says that the said Miami Daily Business Review is a newspaper published at Miami, in said Miami-Dade County, Florida and that the said newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in said Miami-Dade County, Florida each day (except Saturday, Sunday and Legal Holidays) and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post office in Miami in said Miami-Dade County, Florida, for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he or she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in the said newspapet.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of SEPTEMBER, A.D. 2017.

(SEAL) MARIA MESA personally known to me



#### CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (the "Board") of the Coronado Community Development District (the "District") will hold Regular Meetings in the Islands at Donal Clubhouse Meeting Room located at 8250 NW 112th Court, Donal, Florida 33178 at 6:15 p.m. on the following dates:

> October 19, 2017 November 19, 2017 January 18, 2018 February 15, 2018 March 15, 2018 May 17, 2018 June 21, 2018 July 19, 2018 September 20, 2018

The purpose of the meetings is for the Board to consider any District business which may lawfully and property come before the Board. Meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for Community Development Districts. Copies of the Agenda for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District's website or by contacting the District Manager at 305-777-0761 and/or toil free at 1-877-737-4922, prior to the date of the particular meeting.

From time to time one or two Board members may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Board members may be fully informed of the discussions taking place. Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time and place specified on the record.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record includes the testimicity and evidence on which the appeal is based.

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the District Manager at 305-777-0761 and/or toil free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to the date of the particular meeting.

Meetings may be cancelled from time to time with no advertised notice.

CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

www.coronadoodd.org

**4/78** 

17.300000261344M

#### A. CALL TO ORDER

District Manager Armando Silva called the July 19, 2018, Regular Board Meeting of the Coronado Community Development District to order at 6:27 p.m. in the Islands at Doral Clubhouse Meeting Room #2 located at 8250 NW 112<sup>th</sup> Court, Doral, Florida 33178.

#### **B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION**

Mr. Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the *Miami Daily Business Review* on July 9, 2018, as legally required.

#### C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

Mr. Silva determined that the attendance of Chairperson Erwin Santacruz, Vice Chairperson Gladys Huot, and Supervisors Renee Bedoya, Roman Gomez and Digna Cabral constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.

Staff in attendance included: District Manager Armando Silva of Special District Services, Inc.; and District Counsel Alyssa Willson (attended via conference call) of Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.

Also present was Juana Montes, HOA Manager, Castle Group; Dahiane C. Rondon, Doral, Florida.

# D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA

Mr. Silva requested to add the following item for discussion under Administrative & Operational Matters:

• Consider Resignation and Appointment to Fill Vacancy

The Board acknowledged Mr. Silva's request.

#### E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda.

# F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

#### 1. June 12, 2018, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing

Mr. Silva presented the minutes of the June 12, 2018, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing and asked if there were any changes and/or corrections. There being no changes, a **motion** was then made by Ms. Cabral, seconded by Mr. Santacruz and unanimously passed to approve the minutes of the June 12, 2018, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing, *as presented*.

Page 1 of 4

# G. OLD BUSINESS 1. Staff Report: Update Regarding Soft Gate/Security Project

Mr. Silva advised the Board that the revisions to the electrical portion of the 2017 Soft Gate/Security Project (the "2017 Project") final plans have been completed and has been sent to contractors who are interested in bidding for the 2017 Project. Mr. Silva stated that more information regarding this matter will be presented at an upcoming meeting.

# 2. Staff Report: As Required

There was no Staff Report at this time.

# H. NEW BUSINESS

There was no New Business at this time.

*Note:* At approximately 6:33 p.m., Mr. Roman Gomez entered the meeting and simultaneously excused himself due to a phone call.

# I. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 1. Discussion Regarding Community Security Services - Proposals

Mr. Silva provided the Board with a matrix table that compared the Security Services proposals that where provided by U.S. Security and Security Watch Group LLC. The annual cost for providing security services to the District were as follows;

- U.S. Security \$134,688.72
- Security Watch Group LLC \$138,726.00

Apart from the cost, Mr. Silva highlighted the key differences between both proposals being that Security Watch Group LLC is including a gas powered automobile and the Parking Boss Parking Solutions (\$327 monthly fee – waived) while U.S. Security is including an electric powered golf cart and parking enforcement. A discussion ensued after which;

A **motion** was made by Mr. Santacruz, seconded by Ms. Huot and unanimously passed authorizing District Management to send a thirty (30) day termination letter to Public Safety International, Inc.

Another discussion ensued after which;

A **motion** was made by Ms. Huot, seconded by Ms. Bedoya and unanimously passed approving the engagement of Security Watch Group LLC to provide security services to

Page 2 of 4

the District; and thereby authorizes District Management to execute a Security Services Agreement on behalf of the District.

#### 2. Add-On: Consider Resignation and Appointment to Fill Vacancy

Mr. Silva advised that he was in possession of a resignation letter from Digna Cabral (Seat #5) with an effective date of July 19, 2018, and that it would be in order for the Board to consider her resignation. A discussion ensued after which a **motion** was made by Ms. Huot, seconded by Mr. Santacruz and unanimously passed to accept the resignation of Digna Cabral with an effective date of July 19, 2018. As a result of Ms. Cabral's resignation, there is now a vacancy in Seat #5.

Mr. Silva then stated that there was a vacancy in Seat #5 and asked if there were any interested persons who would like to serve on the Board of Supervisors ("Board") of the Coronado Community Development District. Ms. Dahiane C. Rondon, a qualified elector (registered voter) of the State of Florida and living within the boundaries of the District, stated that she was interested in serving on the Board. A discussion ensued after which:

A **motion** was made by Mr. Santacruz, seconded by Ms. Bedoya and unanimously passed to *appoint* Ms. Dahiane C. Rondon to serve the unexpired 2-year term of office in Seat #5 and such term of office will expire in November 2018.

Mr. Silva, Notary Public in the State of Florida, administered the Oath of Office to Ms. Rondon. In addition, Mr. Silva reminded Ms. Rondon of her duties and responsibilities as a Board Member with emphasis on the Sunshine Law, Financial Disclosure for Public Officials (2017 Form 1 must be completed and mailed to the Supervisor of Elections in the County of residency within thirty {30} days of appointment) and the Code of Ethics for Public Officials.

# 3. Staff Report: As Required

# J. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS

There was no Board Member & Staff Closing Comments at this time.

# K. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, a **motion** was made by Mr. Santacruz, seconded by Ms. Huot and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 6:49 p.m.

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Chairperson/Vice Chairperson

Page 4 of 4

#### AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC REGARDING THE PROVISION OF SECURITY SERVICES

**This Agreement** ("Agreement") is made and entered into this \_\_\_\_\_ day of , 2018 by and between:

**CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT,** a local unit of specialpurpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, *Florida Statutes*, being situated in Miami-Dade County, Florida, and with a mailing address 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 (the "District"); and

**SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC,** with a mailing address of 15451 S.W. 119 Terrace, Miami, Florida 33196 ("Contractor", together with District the "Parties").

#### RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, *Florida Statutes* (the "Act"), by ordinance adopted by Miami-Dade County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide security services for the District; and

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal and represents that it is qualified to provide security services and has agreed to provide to the District those services identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein ("Services"); and

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement.

**NOW, THEREFORE,** in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

**SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.** The recitals stated above are true and correct and by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement.

#### SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES.

**A.** The District desires that the Contractor provide professional security services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in **Exhibit A**.

**B.** While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to assure completion of the Services.

C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District.

**D.** This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

**SECTION 3. SCOPE OF SECURITY SERVICES.** The Contractor will provide security services for the District. The duties, obligations, and responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the materials, tools, skill and labor necessary for the Services attached as **Exhibit A**. To the extent any of the provisions of this Agreement are in conflict with the provisions of **Exhibit A**, this Agreement controls.

**SECTION 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE.** The Contractor agrees, as an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor. All work shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and shall be in accordance with industry standards. The performance of the Services by the Contractor under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions issued by the District.

A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if described and delineated in this Agreement.

**B.** The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any work or services not included in **Section 3** unless the District, through an authorized representative of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work.

**C.** The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District's representative with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The District's representative shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the District's policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to the Contractor's services.

- (1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its representative.
- (2) Upon request by the District Manager, the Contractor agrees to meet with the District's representative to walk the property to

discuss conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this Agreement.

**D.** Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor's activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours.

# SECTION 5. COMPENSATION; TERM.

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District agrees to pay the Contractor an hourly rate of \$15.75 per hour for regularly scheduled hours. The Parties agree that Contractor shall provide security services a minimum of 168 hours per week on the days and times as determined by the District Manager and provided to Contractor at least ten (10) days prior to the start of the next preceding month. Contractor shall be compensated \$21.00 per hour for any hours worked on New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day, and any non-scheduled work day with less than seventy two (72) hours advance notice by District. Contractor shall invoice the District monthly for hours of Service pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The District shall provide payment within forty-five (45) days of receipt of invoices. The term of this Agreement shall be from September 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019 unless terminated earlier by either party in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The Agreement may be extended for additional twelve (12) month periods upon agreement of the parties' hereto in writing and subject to appropriation of funds by the District's Board of Supervisors (via the District's Annual Operating Fund Budget) shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A.

**B.** If the District should desire additional work or services, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the Parties shall agree in writing to an, addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement. The Contractor shall be compensated for such agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing.

C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the Contractor that all subcontractors, suppliers or laborers be paid and require evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those subcontractors, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the Contractor, as to services to the District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the obligations with regard to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen's Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages of employees.

**D.** The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices. As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall invoice the District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the Contractor. The District shall pay the invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice

date. The Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due hereunder is not paid within thirty (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such supporting information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide.

SECTION 6. INSURANCE.

- **A.** The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following insurance:
  - (1) Worker's Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.
  - (2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor's legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than \$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards:
    - (i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property damage in connection with any subcontractors' operation.
  - (3) Employer's Liability Coverage with limits of at least \$1,000,000 (one million dollars) per accident or disease.
  - (4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than \$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other equipment required to be licensed.
- **B.** The District and its supervisors shall be named as additional insured. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida.
- C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the District has the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with the District's obtaining the required insurance.

#### **SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION.**

- A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered.
- **B.** Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the District and its officers, agents and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, death, property damage or of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the work to be performed by Contractor, including litigation or any appellate proceedings with respect thereto.
- C. In no event, however, shall Contractor be liable for incidental, special, punitive or exemplary damages in connection with this Agreement, even if notice was given of the possibility of such damages and even if such damages were reasonably foreseeable.

**SECTION 8.** LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed Contractor further agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of liability beyond those contained in Section 768.28, *Florida Statutes*, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.

**SECTION 9. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.** The Contractor shall keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon the giving of notice of termination.

**SECTION 10.** LIENS AND CLAIMS. The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all labor employed, and equipment purchased by it to perform under this Agreement. The Contractor shall keep the District's property free from any liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of the Contractor's performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim or lien. In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies available under

this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination.

**SECTION 11. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.** A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the District's right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.

**SECTION 12.** CUSTOM AND USAGE. It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or waived the same.

**SECTION 13.** SUCCESSORS. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, except as expressly limited in this Agreement.

**SECTION 14. TERMINATION.** The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this Agreement with cause by providing thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the District stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide thirty (30) days' written notice of termination without cause. Upon any termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or offsets the District may have against the Contractor.

**SECTION 15. PERMITS AND LICENSES.** All permits and licenses required by any governmental agency or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be obtained and paid for by the Contractor.

**SECTION 16.** ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any purported assignment without such approval shall be void.

**SECTION 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.** In all matters relating to this Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor. Neither the Contractor nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age

Laws or otherwise. The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement.

**SECTION 18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.** The descriptive headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

**SECTION 19. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.** A default by either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity. In the event that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings.

**SECTION 20.** AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement and Exhibit A hereto, this Agreement shall control.

**SECTION 21. AMENDMENTS.** Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both Parties.

**SECTION 22. AUTHORIZATION.** The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

**SECTION 23. NOTICES.** All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this Agreement ("Notice" or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

<b>A.</b>	If to District:	Coronado Community Development District 2501A Burns Road Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 Attn: District Manager
	With a copy to:	Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 119 S. Monroe Street, Suite 300 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 Attn: District Counsel
B.	If Contractor:	Security Watch Group LLC

15451 S.W. 119 Terrace Miami, Florida 33196 Attn: Christopher Brouwer

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a nonbusiness day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this Agreement.

**SECTION 24. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.** This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns.

**SECTION 25.** CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida. All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, which shall be Miami-Dade County, Florida.

**SECTION 26. PUBLIC RECORDS.** The Contractor agrees and understands that Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, may be applicable to documents prepared in connection with the services provided hereunder and agrees to cooperate with public record requests made thereunder. In connection with this Agreement, Contractor agrees to comply with all provisions of Florida's public records laws, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, the terms of which are incorporated herein. Among other requirements, Contractor must:

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service.

b. Upon request from the District's custodian of public records, provide the District with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the Agreement if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the District.

d. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the District all public

records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the District upon completion of this Agreement, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the District, upon request from the District's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the District.

#### IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, FRANCES WARE, C/O SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC., 2501A BURNS ROAD, PALM BEACH GARDENS, FLORIDA 33410, TELEPHONE: 561-630-4922, EMAIL: FWARE@SDSINC.ORG

**SECTION 27. SEVERABILITY.** The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

**SECTION 28. ARM'S LENGTH TRANSACTION.** This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the Parties as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party.

**SECTION 29.** COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically form one document.

#### [THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF,** the parties hereto have signed this Agreement on the day and year first written above.

ATTEST:

#### CORONADO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson Coronado Community Development District Board of Supervisors

day of , 2018

#### WITNESSES:

# **CONTRACTOR:**

# **SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, a** Florida Profit Corporation.

[PRINT NAME OF WITNESS]

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

By:\_\_\_\_\_ Title:

\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2018

[PRINT NAME OF WITNESS]

STATE OF FLORIDA } } ss: COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE }

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this day, before me, and officer duly authorized in the State aforesaid and in the County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, the foregoing Agreement was acknowledged before me by \_\_\_\_\_\_, the \_\_\_\_\_\_, the \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, of SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, a Florida profit corporation, freely and voluntarily under authority duly vested in him/her by said corporation. He/she is personally known to me \_\_\_\_\_\_ or who has produced \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ as identification.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last aforesaid this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2018.

Notary Public, State of Florida [Signature]

Name of Notary [Typed, Printed or Stamped] My Commission Expires:

# **EXHIBIT A** Security Services Proposal



#### Security Watch Group LLC

8300 NW 53rd ST Suite# 350 Doral, FL 33166 estefany@securitywatchgroup.com Phone: (305) 396-9026



#### Mailing Address: Security Watch Group LLC

15451 SW 119 Terrace Miami, FL 33196 Security Consultant: Christopher Brouwer Phone: 954-682-9156 Fax: Email: chris@securitywatchgroup.com

#### License Number(s): B1100031

Coronado at Doral CDD					Bill To: Coronado at Doral CDD c/o Special District Services, Inc.				Proposal Date: 7/6/2018 Good Through: 8/5/2018					
2501A Burns Road				2501A Bu	urns Road	ł		Service Dates:						
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410				Palm Bea	ch Garde	ens, FL 334	410	Start: TBD						
Phone: 305-777-0761				Phone: 30	05-777-07	761								
Email: asilva@sdsinc.c	org			Email: asilva@sdsinc.org				End: TBD						
Fax:				Fax:										
									Price Per					
Services:	Mon	Tue	Wed	<u>Thur</u>	Fri	<u>Sat</u>	<u>Sun</u>	Total	Service		<u>Total</u>			
Security Officer	24	24	24	24	24	24	24	168	\$ 15.75	\$	2,646.00			
w/ Security Car Includ	ded													
Holiday Rate									\$ 21.00					
Parking Boss								Units	\$327.00	COM	PLEMENTARY			
w/ Unlimited Decals														

		Weekly	Total	\$ 2,646.00
Management Company:	Payment Terms:			
c/o Special District Services, Inc.	Net 15	<b>Bi-Weekly</b> Tot	tal	\$ 5,292.00
		Fuel Surcharg	je	\$ -
	Price Per Unit:	Taxes	0.00%	\$ -
Description of Services:	\$ 16.18	Bi-Weekly		\$ 5.292.00

168 hours a Week (1) Security Officers with Body Camera (1) Security Car with Audio & Video Dash Camera 24 hours a Day: This agreement shall remain in full effect for a period of 12 months.

This proposal reflects services including (1) one Security Officer with vehicle 24 hours a day totalling 168 hours a week. The security patrol vehicle will be a marked security car with security lights that includes all maintenance services and fueling. Security officers will monitor property for a variety of site specific violations as well as any lock up and/or distribution of notifications that may be required. Officers will check for lighting deficiencies, maintenance issues, suspicious criminal activity, and conduct parking enforcement. Officers will enforce all parking rules and regulations that have been approved. Also included, is a username and password to our SWG software that grants you access to real time, GPS stamped site arrivals and departures and any other reports submitted by officer when on your site. All officers have required state certification, with additional on the job training with SWG management. Security officers will be uniformed in SWG tactical wear gear to offer a maximum deterrence fac tor with their presence.

#### Included with this Proposal:

- One (1) Unarmed Uniformed Security Officer with Body Camera

- One (1) Marked Security Vehicle with Audio & Video Dash Camera & GPS Tracking with insurance, maintenance services, & fueling included

- One (1) Dedicated Site Smart Phone with Digital Reporting Software for: (daily activity reports, incident reports, parking violations, & maintenance reports)

-Two (2) Site Signs

-Parking Boss Parking Solutions with Unlimited Decals

These are the dates that holiday rate \$21.00 an hour applies: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day

#### Agreement

Client:

By signing this contract you are agreeing to the description of services herein and as listed in the attached "AGREEMENT'S," and promise to remit payment based upon the above listed terms. Quoted price good for 30 days.

SWG:

[Client]

("hereinafter Client")

#### AGREEMENT FOR SECURITY SERVICE

**1 SERVICES. 1.a** Services to Client: Security Watch Group LLC shall provide the following ("Services") to Client The protection of the client's property or life within the established area(s) listed in the task order attached hereto and made a part hereof this agreement, not including adjacent pr operty, sidewalks, streets, wooded areas, residences, establishments, or businesses or other areas not specifically indicated in this agreement. The designated areas s hall be listed in an attached Description of Service. The terms "protection of property", or "Protection of Life" shall in no way be construed to suggest that Security Wa tch Group LLC is responsible for incidents that occur, which upon acting in good faith, our security guard or sub-contractor performs his or her duties as outlined in this contract and according to

Security Watch Group LLC General Orders, and the incident occurs as a result of an unforeseen circumstance, or upon the reliance by a third party, not covered by this agreement, that Security Watch Group LLC is responsible for the protection of his or her life or property or any other duties contained in this agreement to the client. Security Watch Group LLC employees and sub-contractors will not perform any duties not contracted for. Further that this agreement is solely for the mutual benefit of the parties who enter into it. Nothing shall be construed to suggest that Security Watch Group LLC, its employees, agents, or security guards are compelled, required, contracted, or willing to protect the life or lives or property of persons unless specifically listed in this agreement. **1.b** The terms "protection of property" shall include the listed property in the Task Order. The duties of the Security Watch Group LLC security guard or sub-contractor regarding the protection of life and or property include and are limited to providing a visible deterrent for crimes against the client or the client's property. The terms are limited to the client and or property of the client, so long as the property and client are located within the geographical area listed in the service location during contractually agreed.

**2 PAYMENT AND INVOICING TERMS. 2.1** Payment for Services: Security Watch Group LLC will be paid as follows: The client shall, upon receiving an invoice from Security Watch Group LLC , make payments in the agreed manner payable to Security Watch Group LLC . Security Watch Group LLC will bill the client at a rate listed above for work actually completed as agreed by the client and Security Watch Group LLC . (a) Invoice will be submitted via email by Security Watch Group LLC for payment by Client. Payment is due upon receipt. If Client has any valid reason for disputing any portion of an invoice, Client will so notify Se curity Watch Group LLC within two days agreed upon by Client, and if no such notification is given, the invoice will be deemed valid. The portion of the invoice that is no t in dispute shall be paid in accordance with the procedures set forth herein. Payment is due net ten (15) days from the date of invoice. The client shall be liable for late payments charges for payments received more than 5 days from due date. Said charge is \$35 a day that invoice is not payed. If your account has any unpaid invoices overdue by more than 10 days you will be notified and Security Watch Group may opt to discontinue service. Failure to pay any invoice within 30 days of the due date will result in account termination without further notice. Non-payment of any invoice does not release the client from any amount due at the time of termination. All amounts due plus late charges, if any, will be referred to an outside collection agency and law firm for collection.

**3 CHANGES.** Client may, with the approval of Security Watch Group LLC, issue written directions within the general scope of Security Services to be ordered. Such changes (the "Change Order") may be for additional work or Security Watch Group LLC may be directed to change the direction of the work covered by the description of service, consistent with all applicable laws, but no change will be allowed unless agreed to by Security Watch Group LLC in writing.

4 MISCELLANEOUS.4.1 Entire Agreement; Survival: This Agreement, including any Exhibits, states the entire Agreement between the parties and super sedes all previous contracts, proposals, oral or written, and all other communications between the parties respecting the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any and all prior understandings, representations, warranties, agreements or contracts (whether oral or written) between Client and Security Wa tch Group LLC respecting the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may only be amended by an agreement in writing executed by the parties hereto. Additional servi ces may be added at anytime by request of the client and agreement by Security Watch Group LLC. Such service or services shall be deemed to be consistent with the warranties established herein; Articles 2, 3 and 4 survive the expiration or termination of this agreement for any reason. 4.2 Severability: Should any part of this Agreement for any reason be declared invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining provisions, which remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect as if this Agreement had been executed with the invalid portion thereof eliminated, and it is hereby declared the intention of the parties that they would have exec uted the remaining portion of this Agreement without including any such part, parts, or portions which may, for any reason, be hereafter declared invalid. Any provision s hall nevertheless remain in full force and effect in all other circumstances. 4.3 Independent Contractor: Security Watch Group LLC is an independent contractor of Client. 4.4 Assignment: The Agreement is not assignable or transferable by Client, except as agreed by both parties in writing. 4.5 Non-solicitation of Employees: During and for one (1) year after the term of this Agreement, Client will not solicit the employment of, or employ Security Watch Group LLC personnel, without the prior written consent of Security Watch Group LLC . 4.6 Governing Law: This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law. The language of this Agreement shall be deemed to be the result of negotiation among the parties and their respective counsel and shall not be construed strictly for or against any party. 4.7 Term & Termination: This agreement shall remain in full force and effect as per the details set forth in the Description of Services, if not cancelled by Security Watch Group LLC . Security Watch Group LLC may cancel this Agreement immediately for cause upon 30 days prior written notice cancel this Agreement with or without cause. 4.8 Indemnification: Customer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Contractor (including its shareholders, directors, office rs, agents, and employees) from and against all claims, liabilities, losses, judgments, costs, damages, expenses and attorney's fees in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, to which Contractor is, was, or at any time be comes a party or is threatened to be made a party, due to: (i) the acts or omissions of Customer while fulfilling its duties under this Agreement; (ii) Contractor performing the Services requested by Customer hereunder; and (iii) any injury or damage to Contractor's personnel or property and the personnel and property of any of Contractor's while such are at Customer's facility or while such are performing Services for Customer. 4.9 Client is responsible for any vandalism done to the security car or golf cart. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

[Client] Print and sign:	_ Title:	Date:
[Client] Print and sign:	_ Title:	Date:
[Client] Print and sign:	_Title:	Date:
[Security Watch Group LLC] Print and sign:	_Title:	Date:

[Client] ("hereinafter Client")

#### AGREEMENT FOR PARKING SERVICE

WHEREAS, SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Corporation is in the business of help controlling parking for property management companies and owners of properties and advising of the need and implementing the logistics of the removal of vessels and vehi cles parked in violation of the Building Association's Bylaws, Miami-Dade County Ordinances or, Florida Statutes on residential, and commercial properties in Miami-Dade County, Florida; with domicile for the purposes of this contract in Miami-Dade County, FL, and

WHEREAS, SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC has agreed to provide authorized representatives (on site) as required by Sec. 30 - 475 of Miami-Dade County Ordinances so that the contracted towing agency can remove vehicles, and/ or vessels; and WHEREAS client listed above, with domicile for the purposes of this contract, desires to retain SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, to help fulfill its requirements with the contracted towing agency to have an authorized representative and/or agent at the premises to authorize each and every tow or removal of a vehicle, and/or vessel as long as Miami-Dade County, Florida laws, rules and regulations require such presence; and WHEREAS, client, formally represents that it is a lawfully constituted Board with authority over the premises and it has control and authority to provide notice of violations and forcefully remove vehicles from the following property described to Security Watch Group LLC In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein set forth, the parties agree as follows:

1. SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, will be retained for the exclusive purpose of patrolling through such property, controlling the parking and providing an on-site representative, and/or agent for the contracted towing agency to authorize tows and removal of vehicles, and/or vessel and will provide necessary documentation to Security Watch Group LLC for such services. SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, and its representatives, and /or agents shall be independent contractors for this purpose of all remuneration to be provided under this agreement.

2. SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC is hereby authorized By above listed client To:

A) provide personal notice to vehicle owner or authorized person that the vehicle is parking in violation of clients rules and is subject to removal. B) authorize removal when the vehicle has been parked without authorization for more than 24 hours, OR

C) proceed to the immediate removal if the unauthorized parking is prominently posted as provided in Sec. 30 -474(a) of the Miami-Dade Ordinances, or per HOA bylaws and rules. See attached Exhibit A for parking violations to be enforced.

3.IT IS THE CLIENTS DUTY TO KEEP SEURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, INFORMED, hereby undertakes the obligation to keep

SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC informed of the name, address and contact information of the towing company selected to provide services and provide a copy of the contract entered into with such company. Additionally, the client listed above will keep SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC informed of any changes in the designation of parking spaces or the permission of new or temporary tenants to park.

4. HOLD HARMLESS. Client represents to SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC that they have the full and complete authority to act on behalf of the client within the terms of this agreement, and that it will defend indemnify and hold harmless SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC from any claims or damages sought by any individuals or entities as a result of actions taken in compliance with this Agreement. Unless the claims and/or damages arise from negligence on the part of Security Watch Group, LLC.

5. The client may retain other persons or entities to act as authorized representatives for the purpose of authorizing and re moving vehicles, and/or vessels from the properties it manages in Miami-Dade County, Florida.

6. INTEGRATED AGREEMENT. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no other agreement s, representation or warranties other that set forth herein. This agreement may not be changed, altered and/or modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement of such change would be sought. In the event that the

parties are required to enforce the terms and conditions of this contract the prevailing party shall be binding upon the part ies hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

7. This agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, and Miami -Dade County. All of the parties to this agreement have participated fully in the negotiation and preparation hereof; accordingly, this agreement shall not be more st rictly construed against any one of the parties hereto. In the event any terms or provision of this agreement shall be determined by appropriate judicial authority to be illegal or otherwise invalid, such provisions shall be given its nearest legal meaning or be construed as deleted as such authority determines, and the remainder of this agreement shall be construed to be in full force and effect.

8. SECURITY WATCH GROUP LLC, SHALL NOT BE HELD LIABLE FOR ANY THEFT OR DAMAGE TO ANY VEHICLE, VESSEL, AND/ OR PROPERTY THAT M IGHT OCCUR DURING THE REMOVAL OF ANY VEHICLE, AND/OR VESSEL ON SUCH PROPERTY.

9. This agreement shall remain in full effect for a period of 12 months, unless otherwise agreed by both parties in writing. Said contract will automatically renew for another 12 months if not cancelled in accordance with this agreement. Client may terminate this agreement at any time with or without cause upon 90 days written notice to Security Watch Group LLC

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above written.

[Client] Print and sign:	_ Title:	Date:
[Client] Print and sign:	Title:	Date:
[Client] Print and sign:	Title:	Date:
[Security Watch Group LLC] Print and sign:	_Title:	Date:

# **References**

1. Gardens by the Hammocks HOA, Dolphin Park Commerce III Castle Group: Esther Santamaria, CAM or Patrick Fiore Cell: 786-359-8373 Cell: 786-200-9344 Clubhouse: 305-590-8433

2. Portofino Oaks HOA, Portofino Palms HOA, Stonebrook II First Service Residential: Jesus Lorenzo Cell: 305-632-6329 Office: 305-255-3000

3. Cypress Club of Kendall Condo, Olympian West Condo,
Century Gardens HOA, Riverside Villas at Biscayne National Park
HOA, Evergreen HOA
FPMS- Florida Management Property Solutions: Natalie Cedeno
CAM or Lidi De La Rosa
Office: 786-718-1622

FLORIDA DEPARI	MENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUM ADAM IL PUTNAM COMMISSIONER DIVISION OF LICENSING	IER SERVICES
02/09/17 DATE ISSUED	06/07/20 DATE OF EXPIRATION	B 110003 LICENSE NUMBE
SECURITY WATCH G \$300 N W. 53 STREET SUITE 350 DORAL, FL 33166	ROUP LLC	
	BROUWER, CHRISTOPHER, PRESIDE	NT
THE SECURIT AGENCY NAM CHAPTER 493, FLORIDA STAT	ED ABOVE IS LICENSED AND REGULATED UNDE TUTES.	R THE PROVISIONS OF
		Dur Afteren
		ADAM IL PUTNAM COMMISSIONER

4	CORD CE	RTI	FICATE OF LIA	BIL	ITY INS	URANC	E	1.10	6/25/2018		
CB	HIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MA ERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIV ELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSUF EPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AN	ELY OR	NEGATIVELY AMEND, E DOES NOT CONSTITUTE	XTEND	OR ALTER T	THE COVER	GE AFFORDED BY TH	E PO	LICIES		
If	PORTANT: If the certificate holder is SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to is certificate does not confer rights to	o the te	rms and conditions of the	e palicy	, certain poli	cies may rec					
-	DUCER			CONTA		se Kenworth	y i				
	Better Insurance Group, In 1580 N. Harbor City Blv			PHONE (A/C, N	p. Exti. (321)	724-2100	Fax IA(C, No):	(321	724-2417		
	Melbourne, FL 32935	ADDREss: DeniseK@BetterInsuranceGroup.com									
	License #: A275225			-	NAIC #						
50	RED			INSUR		stindemnit	v Insurance Company	_			
	Security Watch Group, LLC	8		INSUR					1		
	15451 SW 119th Terrac			INSUR					1 1 1 1 1		
	Miami, FL 33196			INSUR							
	line form			INSUR	ERF:				-		
	VERAGES CERT HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES C		E NUMBER: 00000000-				REVISION NUMBER:	11			
NO N	DICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REC ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PER KCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH 1	UIREME RTAIN, T POLICIES	NT, TERM OR CONDITION O HE INSURANCE AFFORDED 5. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE	BY THE	CONTRACT OF POLICIES DE REDUCED BY	R OTHER DOC SCRIBED HEF PAID GLAIMS	UMENT WITH RESPECT T REIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL 1	O WE	HICH THIS		
TR		ADDL SUE				POLICY EXP (MM/DO/YYYY)	LIME	6	1,000,00		
4	X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY	1111	51GL013111-181		05/20/2018	05/20/2019	EACH OCCURRENCE DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Balocurrence)	5	500.00		
b	Licologe Coloure		1				MED EXP (Any one person)	5	10,00		
ł	· .						RERSONAL & ADV WJURY	3	1,000,00		
	GEN'L ADBREDATE LIMIT APPLIES PER						DENERAL AGBREFATE	<u>k</u> -	3,000,00		
							PRODUCTS - COMPLOP AGE	5	1,000,00		
6	AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY						COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT TEa academb	5			
ł	ARY ALL TIT						BODILY INJURY (Per parson)	5			
6	AUTOS ONLY AUTOS HIRETS NON-Y NON-OWNED						BODILY PULIEY (Par acident) PROPERTY DAMAGE	8			
b	AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY						IPer acuident	3			
÷	UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR		1		-	-	EACHOCOURRENCE	3			
	EXCESS LIAE CLAMS MADE						AGGREGATE	3			
	DED RETENTIONS							1			
A	WORKERS COMPENSATION	1.000	5300004086-181		05/18/2018	05/18/2019	X STATUTE ER				
	AND DODORAD RECEIPTAIN TO PARTY INTO A	NZA	1				E.L. EACH ACCIDENT	3	1,000,00		
	(Mandatory in NH)						E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYED	5	1,000,00		
-	It yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below		-	-		-	E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT	3	1,000,00		
ES	CRIPTION OF OPERATIONS (LOCATIONS) VEHICL	ES (ACO	RD 101, Additional Remarks Sohed	iule, may l	be attached if mo	re space is requir	ed)				
30	curry Guard Agency										
W	orkers Comp: Christopher Brouw	ac									
Æ	RTIFICATE HOLDER			CAN	CELLATION	[· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
	Coronado Community c/o Special District Ser 2501A Burns Rd.			THE	EXPIRATION	DATE THERE	ESCRIBED POLICIES BE C DF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIN CY PROVISIONS.	ANCE /EREI	ELLED BEFORE D IN		
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410					AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE						
					CAR IV	way			(DGH		